Meeting papers

Pension Board
Friday 22 April 2016 at 10.00 am
Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

Pension Board

Friday 22 April 2016 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES

Stephen Bace

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Stephen Bace

3

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)

Stephen Bace

To agree the minutes of the previous meeting
4

UPDATE REGARDING ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS (Pages 7 40)

Mark Spilsbury

5

BREACHES POLICY (Pages 41 - 54)

Mark Spilsbury

6

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Pages 55 - 60)

Graham Burrow

7

BUSINESS PLAN 2016/17 (Pages 61 - 68)

Graham Burrow

8

RISK REGISTER (Pages 69 - 86)

Mark Spilsbury

9

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

Sean Collins

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act
1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda
items, because it is likely that if members of the public were present there
would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in
Date Published:14 April 2016

paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information to the public.
10

POOLING OF INVESTMENTS

Graham Burrow,
Mark Spilsbury

11

INVESTMENT FEES

Graham Burrow

12

NEXT MEETING

Stephen Bace

Membership – Cllr Nigel Moor ,Sean Collins (Head of Pensions, Oxfordshire County Council),
Owen Shaw (Head of HR, Cirencester College), Jon Topping (Head of Finance, Gloucester City
Council) and Kate Walton (Head of Finance, University of Gloucestershire)
(a)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk)
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b)

INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny Team)
:01452 324204 /fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions. Please contact Democratic Services (tel
01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting. If you are a member of
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services
Officer on duty at the meeting.
EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to
Shire Hall in Westgate Street. Please remain there and await further instructions.

Agenda Item 3
PENSION BOARD
MINUTES of a meeting of the Pension Board held on Friday 23 October 2015 at the
Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.
PRESENT:
Sean Collins
Cllr Nigel Moor
Owen Shaw

Jon Topping
Kate Walton

Substitutes:
Officers in attendance:

Graham Burrow, Sharon Crane and Joanne Moore

Apologies:
7.

APOLOGIES
There were no apologies at the meeting.

8.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Owen Shaw confirmed that he had now retired from Cirencester College. Owen
enquired whether this would have any impact on his position as a member of the
Pension Board. Action by – Graham Burrow

9.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on 13 July 2015 were agreed and
signed as a correct record of that meeting.

10.

UPCOMING TRAINING DAY
Members were reminded that a training day for the Pension Committee and
Pension Board would be held at Shire Hall, Gloucester at 10.00 am on 5 November
2015. All members of the Pension Board were invited to attend.

11.

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 2014/15 AND THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S AUDIT
FINDINGS REPORT 2014/15
Graham Burrow, Head of Pension Fund at Gloucestershire County Council,
informed the Pensions Board that the Pension Committee had considered the
Pension Fund’s Annual Accounts for 2014/15 at its meeting in August 2015. The
Audit and Governance Committee had subsequently agreed the accounts in
September 2015, and had considered the Audit Findings Report 2014/15.
It was noted the external auditor had recommended a review of user access
segregation conflicts within the County Council’s SAP system. Management were
going to undertake a review. The external auditor also recommended that

-1-

Page 1

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

management reduce the number of users with access to privileged transactions.
The outcomes will be reported back.
The Pension Board noted the Pension Fund Annual Accounts 2014/15 and the
External Auditors Audit Findings Report 2014/15.
12.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The Pension Board received information on the performance indicators included in
the 2014/15 Annual Pensions Report and an update on draft Key Performance
Indicators that are being piloted by the national Scheme Advisory Board.
Graham Burrow, Head of Pension Fund, informed the Board that, to meet the
reporting mechanism requirements referred to in the Guidance Document for Local
Government Pension Scheme Funds 2014, a number of performance indicators,
(Annex 1 to the report), are included in the Pension Fund’s Annual Report. The
performance indicators fell into two categories, the first, to assess the ‘financial
performance’ of the fund, and the second, to consider its ‘administrative
management performance’.
The Head of Pension Fund reported that the Fund had not met the deadline of 31st
August 2015 for issuing Annual Benefit Statements to active and deferred scheme
members. This was a result of receiving employer returns for 2014/15 after the
statutory deadline of 30th June. To avoid a similar occurrence in 2015/16 steps
would be taken to ensure employer information was provided on time in future. An
update would be provided to the next meeting of the Pension Board.
The missed deadline had been reported to the Pension Regulator and no penalties
were imposed subject to the Benefit Statements being sent out by 30th November.
(This was achieved)
Action by Graham Burrow
In considering the results of an employer satisfaction survey undertaken in 2014/15,
the Board noted that only one complaint had been received. The Board felt it might
be useful to receive information on the outcomes of any complaints . Action by
Graham Burrow
The Pension Board requested an update on the key performance indicators that are
being developed by the Scheme Advisory Board.
The Pension Board
RESOLVED to note: a) The Performance Indicators included in the Pension Fund Annual
Report at Annex 1, and
b) The Scheme Advisory Board Key Performance Indicators at Annex 2

-2-

Page 2

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

13.

POLICY DOCUMENTS
The following policy documents were considered at a training session that had been
held earlier that day: a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)

Government Policy Statement
Governance Compliance Statement
Statement of Investment Principles (SIP)
Funding Strategy Statement (FSS)
Administration Strategy
Communication Policy
Business Plan – Gloucestershire Pension Fund 2015-16
Pension Fund Risk Register
Pension Committee Plan 2015/16
Draft Shadow Scheme Advisory Board Plan 2015
Note to Pension Committee regarding LGPS pooled investments
(exempt)

The documents can be viewed at the following link: http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/extra/pensions/investments
14.

WORK PLAN FOR 2015/16
The Pension Board was asked to consider which of the following work strands it
wished to prioritise when considering its work programme:


The Fund’s management, administrative and governance processes to
ensure compliance with the Regulator’s Code of Practice



Compliance of decisions taken by the Fund’s delegated decision makers with
regulations and the funds own policies



Ensuring that the Fund’s policies, (including how the Pension Fund intended
to exercise its discretions under the Local Government Pension Scheme),
are up to date and compliant.



The funds own policies, including for example, communications, governance,
administration for compliance with regulations



Any other matters, as requested by the administering authority

Noting the dates of forthcoming Pension Committee meetings, as
Friday 13 November 2015
Friday 27 November 2015 (Annual Meeting)
Friday 12 February 2016
-3-

Page 3

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

Friday 13 May 2016
Friday 12 August 2016
Friday 11 November 2016
Friday 2 December 2016
it was suggested that the Board consider what items it wished to consider in the
short term, (urgent, more specific items), and what items it wished to consider as
periodic or regular updates, before scheduling the dates of meetings to coincide
with committee meetings.
The following proposals were made: 1) Risk Register–April 2016
2) Investment Fees –April 2016
3) Key Performance Indicators – April 2016
The Pension Board suggested future meetings should include updates on the
government’s proposals for the pooling of investments..
To aid communication between the Pension Committee and the Pension Board, it
was suggested the Board receive Pension Committee papers on publication of the
committee agenda, followed by an invitation for board members to attend
committee meetings, (in an observer capacity), for matters of particular interest.
Members requested that a standard item be included on the agenda of future
Pension Board meetings, to allow its members to refer any concerns or
considerations to the Pension Committee.
15.

DEVELOPMENT OF A TRAINING STRATEGY REGARDING KNOWLEDGE AND
UNDERSTANDING
It was noted that the Pension Committee was due to receive training on 5
November 2015 and that the Pension Board was welcome to attend the training,
which would be held at Shire Hall, Gloucester at 10.00 am.
Having requested details of LGA training dates in 2016, member’s attention was
drawn to point 5.5 of the minutes of the previous meeting, (13 July 2015), and the
proposal that should a member wish to attend the 3 day LGA training course, it
should be with the agreement of the Board. Furthermore, discussions to be held
with neighbouring authorities to identify what training might be available locally.

16.

NEXT MEETING
It was suggested that the Pension Board meet in either March or April 2016, and
again in October 2016.
Action by – Stephen Bace

-4-

Page 4

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

CHAIRMAN
Meeting concluded at 3.15 pm

-5-

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Pension Board
22nd April 2016
Update on the production and distribution of the Annual
Benefits Statements for 2015/16
Report of the Strategic Finance Director
1. At the last meeting of the Board, the Head of the Pension Fund reported that
the Fund had not met the deadline of 31st August 2015 for issuing Annual
Benefit Statements to active and deferred scheme members.
2. This was the result of receiving employer returns for 2014/15 after the
statutory deadline of 30th June. To avoid a similar occurrence in relation to
the 2015/16 Annual Benefit Statements the Head of the Pension Fund
reported that steps would be taken to ensure employer information was
provided on time in future, and an update report would be submitted to the
next meeting of the Board.
3. Significant action has now been taken to fully communicate the importance of
meeting the deadlines for the receipt of information from employers for use in
the valuation being undertaken in 2016/17 and for the production and
despatch of the Annual Benefits Statements by the August 2016 deadline.
4. These communications include the following:
a. Detailed email communication to all employers sent out on the 12th
January 2016 (attachment 1).
b. Targetted slides delivered at the Employers Forum on 13th January
2016 (attachment 2).
c. E-mail to all employers sent out on 12 February 2016 attaching the
slides and minutes of the 12th January Employers forum and again
highlighting the importance of meeting deadlines (attachment 3).
d. Letter commissioned from Hymans and emailed to all employers on
16th February outlining the importance of accurate and timely data and
highlighting the impact of inaccurate data (attachment 4).

Page 7

5. Given that the largest employer within the fund was one of the 52% of Fund
employers who failed to meet the deadlines for the 2014/15 statements, the
Head of the Pension Fund and Pension Administration Manager have been
working with payroll colleagues within Gloucestershire County Council to
ensure that robust, tested, systems are in operation within the Council to
ensure that the year end data is provided to the Pension Fund within the
deadlines set for the submission of the 2015/16 year end information. This
has involved systems enhancements and testing.
6. Following this work, the Head of the Business Services Centre, who provide
payroll services to the County Council and many Academy Schools, has been
able to provide assurance to the Statutory Chief Financial Officer within the
County Council that the deadline set for the provision of year end information
to the Pension Fund for the valuation of the end of April 2016 should be met.
Assurance has also been given that the statutory deadline for the provision of
the information for the Annual Benefits Statements will be met for all GCC
employees and LGPS employees of Academy Schools that receive payroll
services from the County Council.
7. Similarly, the Head of the Pension Fund has confirmed to the Statutory Chief
Financial Officer that if the above deadlines are met, all data will be submitted
to the actuary for the valuation in accordance with agreed timescales and the
Annual Benefits Statements for 2015/16 will be issued to fund members by
the statutory deadline.
8. Once the April 2016 deadline has passed another email communication will
be sent to any employer who has not met the deadline, which will be followed
up by a telephone call, during the first week in May 2016. These
communications will again emphasise the potentially negative impact that the
non return of full and accurate data may have on contribution rates, due to the
fact that the actuaries will have to use incomplete information and in this
context make very prudent assumptions as part of the valuation process.
9. An update report will be submitted to the Pensions Committee on 13th May
2016 setting out the current position regarding meeting the end of April
deadline, and outlining any further follow up action that will be taken.
Recommendation
That the Board note and comment on the procedures followed.
Contact Officer
Mark Spilsbury (01452 328920)

Page 8

Attachment 1 : E-Mail sent to all employers on 12th January 2016
Dear Colleague
Annual Benefit Statements & Year-End Contribution returns
As you are aware, the LGPS2014 Regulations now require that Annual Benefit
Statements (ABS) are issued to members by 31St August each year. Unfortunately,
due to substantial delays in receipt of the 2014/2015 LGPS Year-End returns in
relation to the majority of scheme members from their respective employers, we
were unable to meet that statutory deadline for the March 2015 ABS.
As a result, Gloucestershire LGPS Fund had to declare this breach of law to the
Pensions Regulator (tPR). TPR responded, confirming that they would not take any
action against the Fund on this occasion, as they were aware that similar issues
were being faced by the majority of LGPS Funds across the Country. I understand
that their lenient determination was also largely as a result of the LGA’s continued
correspondence with them regarding the difficulties experienced by both employers
and LGPS funds following the introduction of the LGPS2014. Even taking this into
account, tPR stated that the March 2015 ABS must be dispatched by 30/11/2015
and I am pleased to confirm that we managed to meet that deadline.
Correspondence from both tPR and from the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB)
to LGPS Funds, have however made clear that there must not be a reoccurrence of
this situation again and it is therefore imperative that employers ensure that they
have processes in place to ensure that their 2015/2016 and subsequent LGPS Yearend returns are provided to the Fund as a matter of the utmost urgency.
You may be interested to know by way of the context that led to the delays in the
production of this year’s ABS, that of the 178 Employers within the Gloucestershire
scheme who were required to provide a 2014/2015 LGPS Year-end return, only 33%
met the agreed deadline of 31st May 2015 for submitting the return, with this
percentage rising to 48% meeting the statutory deadline imposed on them of 30th
June 2015.
The majority who did meet deadlines were the smaller Employers. Therefore, if we
instead look to the number of scheme members represented by the returns; only
13% were received within the agreed deadline of 31st May 2015 for submitting
CARE reports, with this percentage rising to 24% meeting the statutory deadline of
30th June 2015.
In fact, only 39% of scheme membership was represented by returns received by
31st August 2015, this being the date by which the ABS themselves were required to
be dispatched to scheme members.
As I am sure you will appreciate, the production of ABS is a substantial project of
work for the pensions section with some 30,000+ active and deferred ABS being
produced and dispatched. Unfortunately, it is not viable to produce ABS in small
batches, as this would create substantially more work and cost to the fund in their
production.

Page 9

For those employers that did provide accurate balanced Year-end returns within the
requested timeframe, I would therefore like to pass on my apologies for the delay,
but hope that they understand that we have done everything possible to ensure
production of the ABS as quickly and cost effectively as possible.
2016 LGPS Valuation
You will no doubt be aware that 2016 is the year of the fund Valuation. This will
further increase time pressures and I therefore confirm that receipt by the Fund
of the balanced 2015/2016 LGPS Year-end returns from employers will be
required by 30th April 2016. Please note, this is one month earlier than the end of
May date which the majority of employers failed to achieve in relation to the 2014/15
returns.
The format of the return and the associated guidance remains the same as was
emailed to employers on 27/03/2015 for the 2014/2015 Year. The return and
guidance can also be found on the Employer pages of our web site. Please note that
for those employers who use the Business Services Centre of Gloucestershire
County Council to provide their payroll provision, it is my understanding that they will
provide the required return on time on your behalf. You may however wish to seek
confirmation of this yourself.
Please note that failure to provide the Year-end return within this timeframe or to
ensure that the fund has been notified of all relevant member scheme changes (i.e.
Starters, Leavers etc), will result in inaccurate data being provided to the actuary
which will in turn impact on the actuaries assessments of your organisations
liabilities (and subsequently employer contribution rate).

As the nominated contact for pensions at your organisation, it is
very important that you ensure that this information is forwarded to
those colleagues within your organisation who deal with these
matters.
If you have any queries, please contact either Paula Marshall on (01452) 328868 or
Pella Fairey (001452) 328870.
Regards
Alan Marshall
Pensions Administration Manager,
Pensions Section,
Strategic Finance,
Gloucestershire County Council,
Shire Hall, Westgate Street, Gloucester GL1 2TG

Page 10

Page 11

Attachment 2
Gloucestershire Pension Fund
Employers Forum
To help improve the Pensions service
provided to Scheme Members

2016 Pension Fund Valuation
• Progress Update

Page 12

• October and December 2015 – discussions with Actuary
on valuation process
• Employer Funding Update reports to be issued early
March 2016
• Meetings with groups of employers 14th March 2016 at
Shire Hall (further details to follow)
• Academies - Colleges - Admission Bodies - Tax raising bodies - T&P
Councils

• Date for data/information required from employers sent by
Fund in January. Further communications from Fund and
Actuary to follow.

Government criteria on Pooling of
Investments by LGPS Funds (Nov 2015)
Page 13

• Investments to be pooled (£25bn). Asset
allocation and investment strategy remains
with individual Funds
• Gloucestershire LGPS working with other SW
LGPS Funds on proposals
• Initial Proposals to DCLG by 19th Feb 2016
• Full Proposals to DCLG by 15th July 2016
• Investments to begin transferring to Pools by
April 2018

Regulatory
• Public Sector exit payment cap - £95k

Page 14

o Consultation forwarded to employers 04/08/2015
o Not directly a pensions issue, but cap is proposed to
include
o Redundancy Payments
o Pension Strain Costs
o Payments on Voluntary Exits
o Severance or ex-gratia payments
o Payment for outstanding entitlement
o Compensation under the terms of a contract
o Pay in lieu of notice
o Shares or Share options

Regulatory
• Public Sector exit payment cap - £95k

Page 15

o Understood to include any employee of a “prescribed
public sector authority” or holder of “prescribed public
sector office”
o Confirmation of organisations and “offices” affected will
be confirmed in legislation
o May apply to contractors providing “outsourced” public
services

Regulatory
• Public Sector exit payment cap - £95k

Page 16

o Minister stated unlikely that Enterprise Bill 2015 will
receive royal ascent before late Spring/early Summer
o LGA understand that cap will not take effect until
Summer/Autumn 2016
o Government feel no need for transitional protections
o Possible ability to relax cap in exceptional
circumstances. Guidance to follow
o LGA understanding of position provided as appendix 1
to LGA Bulletin 137

Regulatory
• Public Sector exit payment – Recovery Regs

Page 17

o Government commenced short consultation (raised in
LGA Bulletin 138)
o Will allow for recovery of part/all of exit payment from
high earners who receive “public sector” exit payment
and subsequently return to public sector
o Proposed that
o Earnings threshold set at £80k
o Includes return to any part of public sector
o Includes any return within 12 months
o LGPS employer strain costs to be included in payments to be
recovered

Regulatory
• HMRC Pension Saving Limits
o 2014/2015 Annual Allowance - £40k (from £50k)
Page 18

o HMRC Savings Statements were due by end of Sept 2015
o Delayed due to Yr-End returns and ABS’s
o Currently working through cases
o Requesting additional information from employers for potentially
affected scheme members

Regulatory
• HMRC Pension Saving Limits
o 2015/2016 Lifetime Allowance - to further reduce to
£1m
Page 19

o Expected that protections will be available and similar to those
available in 2012 & 2014 (subject to current £1.25m limit)
o Final details not available
o Raised to members in ABS Newsletter
o Potentially affected members may wish to seek financial advice
o £1m LTA index linked from 2018

Regulatory
• HMRC – Green paper on Tax Relief reform

Page 20

o Raised in LGA Bulletins 135 & 136
o Chancellor confirmed that further details delayed until
2016 Budget
o Various options open
o Scrapping tax relief on contributions and making pension
payment tax free income
o Limiting level of tax relief available on contributions paid (i.e.
removing higher rate tax relief)

Regulatory
• Ending of Contracting Out (and therefore NI
rebate) from April 2016
Page 21

o We have flagged to employers at last 3 Forums
o LGA Bulletin 133 (July 15) provided Employer Q&A
o Employer contracted out NI rebate of 3.4% will cease
o Employers must notify affected staff of increase in NI
Contributions due to removal of Employee contracting
out NI rebate of 1.4%
o Applies to anyone paying “contracted out” NI
(i.e. LGPS, Teachers etc)
o DWP Toolkit available (see LGA Bulletin 138)

Regulatory
• Ending of Contracting Out (and therefore NI
rebate) from April 2016
Page 22

o Employee Q&A available on our website
o Pension Fund must notify members that LGPS will no
longer be a “contracted out” scheme
o Awaiting clarification from Government regarding effect on
members LGPS benefits. Specifically in relation to index
linking of members benefits beyond State Pension Age
(SPA)

o Pension Fund must reconcile all “Contracted-Out”
membership since April 1978
o Will require referral to employers in some query cases

Regulatory
• 2016 Indexation of Benefits

Page 23

o CPI for September 2015 was – 0.1% (i.e. negative)
o Pensions in payment & deferred benefits are indexed
under Pensions Increase Act 1971
o Understand will default to 0%

o Active member CARE benefits indexed under Public
Service Pensions Act 2013
o Negative indexation requires approval of House of Commons
& Lords (affirmative procedure)
o If Negative Indexation approved, this will mean a reduction in
CARE benefits accrued to end of 2015/2016

Regulatory
• Pensions Ombudsman - Ill Health

Page 24

o Pensions Ombudsman has developed a generic
guide for employers, of how he may consider a
member complaint (link provided in LGA Bulletin 137)
o Will hopefully assist employers in ensuring that they
obtain the correct information and follow “due
process” before making their decision to award ill
health or not

2014/2015 LGPS Year End Report
• Review

Page 25

o Substantial delays in receipt of year end information for
majority of scheme members from their employers
o Where returns received, common issues:
o Not balanced
o Multiple lines provided even though member had 1
employment record
o “Strike” contributions added into Employee Contributions rather
than as APC
o Negative amounts
o Missing data - start/end dates in period, casual staff hours,
Final Salary pay

o In excess of 600 queries still to be referred back to
employers

2014/2015 Annual Benefit
Statements (ABS) - Update
Page 26

o ABS’s should have been dispatched by 31st August
o Substantial delays in receipt of year end information for
majority of members from their employers
o Declared to the Pensions Regulator (tPR) that
legislation breached and reasons
o tPR provided “exception” deadline of 30/11/2015 which
was met
o tPR stated that must not be a reoccurrence

2014/2015 Annual Benefit
Statements (ABS) - Update
Page 27

o New format ABS’s (including CARE) have been well
received by scheme members
o More complex, but have tried to lay out as clearly as
possible (i.e. summary, followed by more detail)
o ABS Guide updated
o Newsletter covering relevant issues
o Intend that 2015/2016 ABS will follow same format
o 2015/2016 ABS will be produced after Valuation

March 2016 Valuation
• 2015/2016 Employer Year End returns
Page 28

o Balanced 2015/2016 Year End returns from
employers must be received by 30/04/2016 (at the
latest)
o Inconsistent/unbalanced returns will be sent back to
employers for correction
o Adherence to timescales is critical

March 2016 Valuation
• 2015/2016 Employer Year End returns
o If accurate return is not received from employer until
after 30/04/2016
Page 29

o it is very unlikely that any of the 2015/2016 year end
information for that employer will be posted to member
records in time for the Valuation
o actuary will be informed of the omission and will have to
make additional “prudent “assumptions in assessing
employers liabilities

o Adherence to timescales is critical

March 2016 Valuation
• Non-notification to Fund of
New Starters/Leavers etc
Page 30

o Failure to notify the fund of New Starters will clearly
mean the actuary will receive no information relating
to that member
o Failure to notify the fund of a Leaver will mean that the
member record will be incorrectly categorised by the
actuary and/or the actuary will have to make additional
“prudent “assumptions in assessing that member
o All outstanding omissions must be notified using the
correct form by 30/04/2016
o Adherence to timescales is critical

March 2016 Valuation
• Pensions Team can provide “snapshot” extract
of Active records held, to employer
Page 31

o Employer can validate against own payroll/HR
systems
o Any discrepancies notified to be Pensions Team on
appropriate form

o Request by emailing
pensions@gloucestershire.gov.uk and asking for a
“snapshot extract of actives”

• Facility is not an alternative to employers legal
duty to provide information on an ongoing basis

Pension Section – Operational
timescales & issues
Page 32

o Estimates taking on average 4 – 5 weeks (previously 2
weeks)
o Payment of Retirement Benefits on average 4 – 5
weeks (previously 2 weeks)
o Work is processed chronologically to ensure
consistency and fairness
o Currently developing/testing Bulk
Redundancy/Efficiency calculation facility
o Will keep employers updated of any further issues

Questions & Answers / A.O.B.
• Pensions Section Website
• Employers Pages
Page 33

o http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsemployers
o Employers Guide & Forms

• Employees Pages
o http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensions
o Links to National LGPS Websites
o Forms and Booklets

This page is intentionally left blank

Attachment 3 : E-mail sent to all Employers on 16th February 2016
Dear Employers,
For information, please find attached a copy of the minutes and slides for the
Employers Forum which took place on the 13th January 2016.
In particular, I would draw your attention to pages 18 – 21 of the slides which cover
the 2016 Valuation requirements and process. Failure to meet the 30/04/2016
deadline for (i) provision of an accurate, reconciled and balanced Year-End return
and/or (ii) ensuring that any outstanding member documentation is provided within
that deadline, will affect the accuracy of the data sent to the actuary and hence the
valuation results for your organisation.
The potential impact of this will be set out in more detail in a letter that will be sent to
you shortly from Hymans Robertson as actuaries to the Fund. However,
simplistically, if inaccurate or incomplete data is submitted or data is submitted late, it
is likely to result in higher employer contributions in relation to the particular
employers submitting this information. Hence it is in your best interests as an
employer to ensure that complete and accurate data is provided by the 30/04/2016
deadline.
These slides and the discussion at the January 2016 Employer Forum again
reiterate the message provided to employers at the July 2015 Employer Forum and
also in my email of 12th January 2016 sent to the nominated contact of every
employer.

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Private & Confidential

16 February 2016

Dear Colleague
Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”)
2016 Valuation – Employer Data
We “Gloucestershire County Council” and “Hymans Robertson” as actuaries to the Fund are
currently planning and preparing to carry out the statutory valuation of Gloucestershire County
Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”) as at 31 March 2016. As part of our preparation, I am writing
to you to explain the importance of the data provided by employers, such as yourselves, in the
valuation process and to ask for your support in ensuring that you provide timely, complete and
accurate data.
Purpose of the Triennial Formal Valuation
Formal valuations are the Fund’s budgeting exercise. This is the process that assesses the value
of the pension obligations to be met from the Fund and enables the Fund to plan how to meet
these obligations and manage funding risks.
Importantly, the valuation process determines the employer contribution rates to be paid
to the Fund from 1 April 2017.
Importance of Membership Data
The valuation process is critically dependent on the membership data provided to the Fund by
employers. As the actuary to the Fund, we are required to calculate the value of pension benefits
due to every employee, as well as former employees, who participate in the Fund and ensure that
adequate funds are set aside to pay for these benefits. From 1 April 2014, the data required to
carry out these calculations increased in complexity as employee benefits are no longer based
only on the members’ salary at the valuation date, but are also based on the pay earned each
year of their participation in the Fund. All the data requested by the Fund must be completed in
respect of all members. There are number of statutory deadlines for carrying out the valuation
and reporting the results that the Fund must meet.
The valuation process cannot begin until all data has been provided by all employers.

Page 37

Page 2
16 February 2016

Impact of missing or incomplete data
If employers do not supply high quality data to the Fund there are a number of consequences for
the Fund, employers and members. Some of these are outlined below:
Fund
-

-

The Fund liabilities will be assessed inaccurately and there is a risk that the Fund may be
not be holding sufficient monies to meet payments as they fall due.
The Fund may pay an incorrect level of pension benefits to members or, in extreme
cases, may be unable to make benefit payments at all as the correct amount cannot be
calculated.
The Fund may invest assets inappropriately because the nature and timing of liabilities is
not fully understood.
The Fund may be in breach of statutory requirements for holding accurate and complete
data resulting in a fine.

Employers
As actuaries, we have a professional requirement to carry out validation checks on the
data prior to carrying out the valuation calculations. If data is missing, inaccurate or
inconsistent with previously submitted data, estimates or approximations will be made. In
order to protect the Fund, we will always make cautious estimates for missing data.
This can lead to employers paying higher contributions than would be required if
their data were complete and accurate.
The calculations in the box below show the sensitivity of the employer contribution rate to
the member data.
Example: Error in Member Salary

Increases the liability by 50%, increases the employer contribution rate by 10%
Example: Error in Member Date of Birth

Increases the liability by 50%, increases the employer contribution rate by 3%

Where employer data is considered to be materially incomplete or inaccurate, we will add
an explicit premium to the employer contribution rate to protect the Fund from the risk of
unrecognised liabilities arising at a future date.

Page 38

Page 3
16 February 2016

-

-

Accounting reports (FRS17, FRS102 and IAS19) are based on the formal valuation data.
Incomplete or estimated membership data can lead to material misstatements in an
employer’s accounting disclosures.
The Pensions Regulator has jurisdiction over administration in the LGPS. If an employer
fails to provide adequate data to allow administration of pension benefits the Pensions
Regulator has recourse to apply sanctions, including fining the employer up to a limit of
£60,000 per day per breach.

Members
Employee members may receive and rely on annual benefit statements for retirement
planning which contain incorrect data.
Employee members may be paid incorrect benefit amounts as a result of data errors. Any
overpayments must be reclaimed which can be a distressing experience.
Highly paid employee members may incur unexpected tax charges as a results of poor
data which doesn’t allow fully informed financial planning.
What does the Fund need from employers?
Employers are asked to submit their annual return for the year ending 31 March 2016 to
the Fund by 30 April 2016 at the very latest to ensure there is a reasonable chance of
meeting the valuation deadline.
Please take care to ensure that the information provided is complete and accurate.
The Fund may need to verify some of the data within the annual return. Your support in
addressing any queries raised quickly will be appreciated and will help the Fund to meet the
statutory deadlines.
There will be further communication and engagement with employers throughout the valuation
process. We look forward to meeting you all on 14 March at the meeting arranged by the Fund at
Shire Hall. At this meeting we will discuss:
-

key dates when final employer results and recommended contribution rates will be
available;
the approach we will take to engage with employers regarding their covenant
assessment and contribution rate; and
how employers can consult on the Fund’s funding strategy statement.

The Fund will also be sending an early warning report in advance of the March meeting to provide
an estimate of your funding position and we will be providing further details on the potential
impact on your contribution rate during our presentation.
If you have queries about this letter or are concerned about your ability to provide the data
required, please contact the Fund’s Pension Administration Manager, Alan Marshall, via
email alan.marshall@gloucestershire.gov.uk as soon as possible.
Kind regards

Julie West FFA
For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Pension Board
22nd April 2016
Breaches Procedure Policy Guidelines
Report of the Strategic Finance Director
Purpose of the Report
1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with a copy of the breaches
policy which was approved by the Pension Committee on the 12th February 2016,
which highlights the roles of the Pension Committee, Officers and Pension Board
Members.
Background
2. There is a legal requirement on all Pension Fund Committee Members, Local
Pension Board Members, officers of the Fund, employers, and advisers to report any
significant breaches of the law to the Pensions Regulator where they are likely to
be of material significance to them.
3. The Pensions Regulator Code of Practice no 14 (Governance and administration
of public service pension schemes) states there should be a procedure in place
within each Fund to identify and assess these breaches.
4. The attached Breaches Policy Guidelines, which have been produced by officers
in conjunction with Hymans Robertson, set out these responsibilities and provide a
framework for the Fund to identify, manage and where necessary report breaches of
the law applying to the management and administration of the Fund.
5. Where a breach of the law is identified both the Pension Committee and the Local
Pension Board will need to take all necessary steps to consider the breach and if
necessary report to the Pensions Regulator.
6. It is stressed that, as set out in the breaches policy, only significant breaches are
required to be reported to the Pensions Regulator.
7. The Pension Board, together with the Pension Committee, is required to monitor
all breaches and ensure that adequate resources are allocated to managing and
administering this process.
8. Officers will effectively be responsible for the management and execution of these
guidelines and for ensuring that training is conducted for all relevant officers,
Pension Committee members, Members of the Gloucestershire Pension Fund
Committee and Local Pension Board at induction and on an ongoing basis.

Page 41

9. The identification, management and reporting of breaches is important. It is a
requirement of the Pensions Act 2004 and Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice;
failure to report a breach without “reasonable excuse” is a civil offence that can result
in civil penalties.
10. At the same time, in addition to identifying, rectifying and where necessary
reporting a particular breach, it provides an opportunity to learn from mistakes and
review and improve processes in the areas where the breach occurred.
11. All staff are required, to take a pro-active approach to the identification,
management and reporting of all breaches that have occurred, or are likely to occur.
A log, which is provided as an attachment to the policy, will be maintained of all
breaches of the law as applicable to the management and administration of the
Fund.
12. The Gloucestershire Pension Fund and the Local Pension Board cannot rely on
waiting for other reporters to report a breach where it has occurred. Where a breach
has occurred and has been identified it should be recorded, assessed and where
necessary reported as soon as reasonably practicable. The Breaches Policy
Guidelines provide a framework to achieve this.
13. The Guidelines define what a breach of the law is, the responsibilities on those
who should be reporting, the requirements for reporting a breach, and deciding if a
breach is “materially significant” to be reported to Pensions Regulator.
14. Under this document any breach identified should be reported, initially to the
Head of Pension Fund, who will investigate and assess the severity. If a breach has
occurred, it will be logged, and if significant be reported to the Chairman of the
Pensions Committee and Local Pensions Board, and in conjunction with relevant
colleagues agree a proposed course of action to rectify and put in place measures to
prevent recurrences. The Breaches Log will be reported regularly to the Pension
Committee and Local Pension Board.
15. If any breach is considered significant or it is not clear as to whether it is
significant, then it will be reported to Committee and the Local Pension Board to
consider. The Section 151 officer will make the final determination as to whether it is
materially significant having regard to the guidance set out in the Code and after
consultation with the Head of Legal Services.
16. Details of significant breaches will be published in the Fund’s Annual Report.
Recommendation
That the Board notes the attached breaches policy and the procedures set out for
the recording and reporting of breaches.
Contact Officer
Mark Spilsbury (01452 328944)

Page 42

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson

Gloucestershire Pension Fund
Policy for Reporting Breaches of the Law
Background
Gloucestershire Pension Fund (“the Fund”) has prepared this document in setting out its policy and procedures
on identifying, managing and where necessary reporting breaches of the law as covered in paragraphs 241 to
275 of the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice no 14: Governance and administration of public service pension
schemes (“the Code of Practice”).
This policy sets out the responsibility of the Pension Committee, officers of Gloucestershire County Council (“the
Council”), and the Gloucestershire Pension Fund local pension board in identifying, managing and where
necessary reporting breaches of the law as they apply to the management and administration of the Fund. This
policy does not cover the responsibility of other “reporters” (described later in this policy) in relation to their
obligation to report breaches in accordance with the Code of Practice where they relate to the management and
administration of the Fund. Where a breach of the law is identified all parties will take the necessary steps to
consider the breach and report to the Regulator, rather than having the breach solely reported by any of the other
“reporters”.
This policy will be reviewed and approved by the Pension Committee at least annually. The Pension Committee
and Pension Board will monitor all breaches and will ensure that adequate resources are allocated to managing
and administering this process.
The section 151 officer for the Council will be responsible for the management and execution of this breaches
policy, and will ensure that training on breaches of the law and this policy is conducted for all relevant officers and
Pension Committee members, as well as members of the local pension board at induction and on an ongoing
basis.
Overview
The identification, management and reporting of breaches is important. It is a requirement of the Code of
Practice; failure to report a material breach is a civil offence that can result in civil penalties.
At the same time, in addition to identifying, rectifying and where necessary reporting a particular breach it
provides an opportunity to learn from mistakes and review and improve processes in the areas where the breach
occurred.
All staff involved in the administration and management of the Fund are expected, indeed required, to take a proactive approach to the identification, management and reporting of all breaches that have occurred, or are likely
to occur.
The Council, as the scheme manager for the Gloucestershire Pension Fund, will maintain a log of all breaches of
the law as applicable to the management and administration of the Fund.
Where a breach has occurred it should be identified and logged as either an area of non-compliance under the
LGPS Regulation, a breach under Pension Law as defined within section 13 of the 2004 Pension Act or the
Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice 14.
The Pension Committee, officers and the local pension board cannot rely on waiting for other reporters to report a
breach where it has occurred. Where a breach has occurred and has been identified by the Council, officers or
local pension board it should be recorded, assessed and where necessary reported as soon as reasonably
practicable.
1|Page

Page 43

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson

What is a breach of the law?
A breach of the law is “an act of breaking or failing to observe a law, agreement, or code of conduct.”. In the
context of the Local Government Pension Scheme (“LGPS”) it can encompass many aspects of the management
and administration of the scheme, including, for example, failure:


to do anything required under the LGPS Regulations;



to do anything required under overriding legislation, applicable statutory guidance or codes of practice;



to maintain accurate records;



to act on any fraudulent act or omission that is identified;



of an employer to pay over member and employer contributions on time;



to pay member benefits either accurately or in a timely manner;



to issue annual benefit statements on time.

What is non-compliance under the LGPS Regulations?
Non-compliance with the LGPS regulations can cover many aspects of the management and administration of the
scheme, including failure:


to do anything required under the LGPS Regulations



to comply with policies and procedures (e.g. the Funds Statement of investment principles, funding
strategy, discretionary policies, etc.);

Responsibilities in relation to breaches
Responsibility to report identified breaches of the law in relation to the Code of Practice falls on the following
(known as “reporters”):


Pension Committee members and officers of the Council, as the Scheme Manager;



Members of the local pension board;



Scheme employers;



Professional advisers (including the Fund actuary, benefit consultant, investment advisers, legal advisers);
and



Third party providers (where so employed).

This policy applies only to Pension Committee members and officers of the Council, and members of the local
pension board. It is for the other reporters to ensure adequate procedures and policies are put in place in order to
identify, assess and where necessary report breaches. Both the Council and the local pension board will take all
necessary steps to consider the breach and report to the Regulator, rather than having the breach solely reported
by any of the other “reporters”.
Requirement to report a breach of the Law
Breaches of the law which affect pension schemes should be considered for reporting to the Pensions Regulator.
The decision whether to report an identified breach depends on whether:


there is reasonable cause to believe there has been a breach of the law;



and if so, is the breach likely to be of material significance to the Regulator?
2|Page

Page 44

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson
It is important to understand that not every breach that is identified needs to be reported to the Regulator. For
example, where it can be demonstrated that appropriate action is being taken to rectify the breach, or the breach
has occurred due to teething problems with new or revised systems or processes, it may not be necessary to
report the incident to the Regulator. It is still necessary that all incidents of breaches identified are recorded in the
Council’s breaches log. This log will be reviewed on an on-going basis to determine any trends in the breaches
log that might indicate any serious failings or fraudulent behaviour.
Where such failings or fraudulent behaviour are identified immediate action will be taken to agree and put in place
a plan of action to rectify the matter and prevent such an occurrence in the future.
When is a breach required to be reported to the Regulator?
The Code of Practice requires that a breach should be notified to the Regulator as soon as is reasonably
practicable once there is reasonable cause to believe that a breach has occurred and that it is of material
significance to the Regulator. In any event, where a breach is considered to be of material significance it must be
reported to the Regulator no later than one month after becoming aware of the breach or likely breach.
Where it is considered that a breach is of such significance that the Regulator is required to intervene as a matter
of urgency (for example, serious fraud) the matter should be brought to the attention of the Regulator immediately
(e.g. by calling them direct). A formal report should then be submitted to the Regulator, marked as “urgent” in
order to draw the Regulator’s attention to it
Assessing “reasonable cause”
It is important that the Council and the local pension board are satisfied that a breach has actually occurred,
rather than acting on a suspicion of such an event.
It will be necessary, therefore, for robust checks to be made by officers and Pension Committee members when
acting on any suspicion of a breach having occurred. Where necessary this will involve taking legal advice from
Legal Services (who may recommend specialist external legal advice if necessary) as well as other advisers (e.g.
auditors or the Fund actuary, benefit consultant or investment advisers).
Deciding if a breach is “materially significant” and should be reported to the Regulator
The Regulator has produced a decision tree to assist schemes in identifying the severity of a breach and whether
it should then be reported. When determining materiality of any breach or likely breach the Pension Committee,
officers and local pension board will in all cases consider the following:


cause – e.g. dishonesty, poor governance, incomplete or inaccurate information, acting or failing to act in
contravention of the law;



effect – does the nature of the breach lead to an increased likelihood of further material breaches. Is it
likely to cause, for example; ineffective internal controls, lack of knowledge and understanding, inaccurate
records, potential for further breaches occurring;



reaction – e.g. taking prompt and effective action to resolve a breach, notifying scheme members where
appropriate; and



wider implications – e.g. where a breach has occurred due to lack of knowledge or poor systems and
processes making it more likely that other breaches will emerge in the future.

The decision tree provides a “traffic light” system of categorising an identified breach:
Green – not caused by dishonesty, poor governance or a deliberate contravention of the law and its effect is not
significant and a plan is in place to rectify the situation. In such cases the breach may not be reported to the
Regulator, but should be recorded in the Council’s breaches log;
3|Page

Page 45

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson
Amber – does not fall easily into either green or red and requires further investigation in order to determine what
action to take. Consideration of other recorded breaches may also be relevant in determining the most
appropriate course of action. The Council will need to decide whether to informally alert the Regulator of the
breach or likely breach, formally reporting the breach if it is subsequently decided to categorise the breach as red;
Red - caused by dishonesty, poor governance or a deliberate contravention of the law and having a significant
impact, even where a plan is in place to rectify the situation. The Council must report all such breaches to the
Regulator in all cases;
It should be noted that failure to report a significant breach or likely breach is likely, in itself, to be a significant
breach.
The Council will use the Regulator’s decision tree as a means of identifying whether any breach is to be
considered as materially significant and so reported to the Regulator.
Any failure of a scheme employer to pass over employee contributions that are considered to be of material
significance must be reported to the Regulator immediately.
In order to determine whether failure to pay over employee contributions is materially significant or not the Council
will seek from the employer:


the cause and circumstances of the payment failure



what action the employer has taken as a result of the payment failure, and



the wider implications or impact of the payment failure.

Where a payment plan is agreed with the employer to recover outstanding contributions and it is being adhered to
or there are circumstances of infrequent one-off late payments or administrative failures the late payment will not
be considered to be of material significance.
All incidences resulting from the unwillingness or inability of the employer to pay over the employee contributions,
dishonesty, fraudulent behaviour or misuse of employee contributions, poor administrative procedures or the
failure to pay over employee contributions within 90 days from the due date will be considered to be of material
significance and reported to the Regulator.
Once a breach or likely breach has been identified, regardless of whether it needs to be reported to the
Regulator, the relevant manager, in consultation with the section 151 officer must review the circumstances of the
breach in order to understand why it occurred, the consequences of the breach and agree the corrective
measures required to prevent re-occurrence, including an action plan where necessary. All breaches must be
recorded in the Council’s breaches log.

4|Page

Page 46

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson

Process for reporting breaches
All relevant officers and Pension Committee members of the Council, as well as all members of the local pension
board have a responsibility to:


identify and assess the severity of any breach or likely breach;



report all breaches or likely breaches to the section 151 officer;



in conjunction with relevant colleagues agree a proposed course of action to rectify the breach and put in
place measures to ensure the breach does not re-occur, obtaining appropriate legal or other advice where
necessary;



ensure that the appropriate corrective action has been taken to rectify the breach or likely breach and to
prevent it from recurring; and



co-operate with, and assist in, the reporting of breaches and likely breaches to the Pension Committee,
local pension board and where necessary the Regulator.

5|Page

Page 47

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson
Responsibilities of the responsible officer
The Council’s section 151 officer will be responsible for the management and execution of this breaches policy,
and for recording and reporting breaches and likely breaches as follows:


record all identified breaches and likely breaches of which they are aware in the Council’s breaches log;



investigate the circumstances of all reported breaches and likely breaches;



ensure, where necessary that an action plan is put in place and acted on to correct the identified breach
and also ensure further breaches of a similar nature do not reoccur;



report to the Pension Committee and local pension board:
- all materially significant breaches or likely breaches that will require reporting to the Regulator as soon
as practicable, but no later than one month after becoming aware of the breach or likely breach; and
- all other breaches at least quarterly as part of the Committee cycle.



report all materially significant breaches to the Regulator as soon as practicable but not later than one
month after becoming aware of the breach.

The section 151 officer will determine whether any breach or likely breach is materially significant, having regard
to the guidance set out in the Code of Practice and after consultation with parties they deem appropriate. Such
parties might include the Head of Legal Services, the Pension Committee and local pension board.
If appropriate, the matter will be referred to an external party to obtain any necessary legal or other advice before
deciding if the breach is considered to be of material significance to the Regulator. Where uncertainty exists as to
the materiality of any identified breach the Pension Committee, officers or local pension board will be required to
informally notify the Regulator of the issue and the steps being taken to resolve the issue.
How should a breach be reported to the Regulator?
All materially significant breaches must be reported to the Regulator in writing. This can be via post or
electronically. The Regulator encourages the use of its standard reporting facility via its Exchange on-line
service.
The Council will report all material breaches to the Regulator via Exchange.
How are records of breaches maintained?
All breaches and likely breaches identified are to be reported to the section 151 officer as soon as they are
identified. The section 151 officer will log all breaches on the Council’s breaches log, including the following
information:


date the breach or likely breach was identified;



name of the scheme;



name of the employer (where appropriate);



any relevant dates;



a description of the breach, its cause and effect, including the reasons it is, or is not, believed to be of
material significance;



whether the breach is considered to be red, amber or green.



a description of the actions taken to rectify the breach;
6|Page

Page 48

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson


a brief descriptions of any longer term implications and actions required to prevent similar types of
breaches recurring in the future.

The section 151 officer will be responsible for ensuring the effective management and rectification of any breach
identified, including submission of any report to the Regulator. Any documentation supporting the breach will also
be retained.
Whistleblowing
It is a statutory duty to report breaches of the law. In rare cases this may involve a duty to whistleblow on the part
of an employee of the Council, Pension Committee members, officers or a member of the local pension board.
The duty to report does not override any other duties a “reporter” may have, such as confidentiality. Any such
duty is not breached by reporting to the Regulator. Given the statutory duty that exists, in exercising this
breaches policy the Council will ensure it adheres to the requirements of the Employment Rights Act 1996 in
protecting an employee making a whistleblowing disclosure to the Regulator.
The duty to report, however, does not override ‘legal privilege’, so certain oral and written communications
between the Council or local pension board and a professional legal adviser do not have to be disclosed if they
meet the principles of legal privilege.
Training
The section 151 officer will ensure that all relevant officers and elected members, as well as members of the local
pension board receive appropriate training on this policy at the commencement of their employment or
appointment to the local pension board as appropriate and on an ongoing basis.

7|Page

Page 49

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson

Appendix A
Example scenarios
Failure to enter employee into the scheme
Scenario
It is discovered that a scheme employer has not entered an eligible employee into the LGPS on joining
Steps that might be taken
On the face of it a breach will have occurred, as the scheme employer has failed to do something they are
required to do under the rule of the LGPS. Before deciding to report to the Pensions Regulator it is necessary to
consider why this has happened and the steps that are being taken to either rectify the situation and/or ensure it
is not repeated. This will include:


Assessing whether failure relates to a specific employee or is it something more widespread



Remedying this particular situation immediately



Understanding if there have been personnel changes at the employer; has this resulted in teething
problems during any hand-over?



If necessary the Fund could provide training to the employer on its responsibilities to ensure there is no
repeated failure

Materiality
When considering if the delay/failure is likely to be of “material significance” you could consider;


Has the member been denied access to the scheme completely?



Has the employer failed to respond to the Fund’s enquiries?



Has the member not been given the opportunity to backdate entry to the scheme and pay arrears?



Has the employer failed to put in place an immediate plan to remedy any further failures?



Are more members affected, or is this a one-off?

If the answer to any of the above is “yes” this may imply materiality and may warrant reporting to the
Pensions Regulator. In any event the issue should be added to the Council’s breaches log.
Late payment over of contributions
Scenario
You have a scheme employer that is late in paying over employee and employer contributions
Steps that might be taken
The reasons for the delayed payment could many, so while a breach has clearly occurred it is important to
understand the reasons behind the delay. To do this:


Contact the employer to assess the reason for the delay



Investigate what went wrong



Ensure steps are put in place so as to avoid a repeat in future months



Record the outcome of your investigation



Make sure processes are assessed to ensure they pick up any potential fraud

8|Page

Page 50

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson
Materiality
While the reason for the delay in paying over contributions might be entirely innocent, it is also possible
something more sinister is at play and could be “materially significant”. Consider;


Is the employer unwilling or unable to pay? e.g. due to insolvency



Is any dishonesty involved on the part of the employer? e.g. using non-payment to ease cash-flow



Is the employer seeking to avoid paying contributions?



Does the employer have inadequate processes in place to recover contributions?



Have contributions been outstanding for over 90 days since being identified?

If the answer to any of the above is “yes” this may imply materiality and may warrant reporting to the
Pensions Regulator. In any event the issue should be added to the Council’s breaches log.

Late Submission of year-end data
Scenario
A scheme employer is late in submitting year-end pay and contribution return in respect of active scheme
members
Steps that might be taken
On the face of it this is a breach, but the employer may not necessarily appreciate the significance. Things you
might consider doing include:


Contacting the employer to assess the reason for the non-submission



Investigating with the employer what went wrong



Putting in place steps to ensure no repeat



Recording your investigations

Materiality
Is the delay/failure likely to be of “material significance”? Consider;


Is the employer unwilling or unable to provide the required data? e.g. are its systems adequate



Has the employer failed to respond to the Fund’s enquiries?



Will the delay impact the issue of annual benefit statements?

If the answer to any of the above is “yes” this may imply materiality and may warrant reporting to the
Pensions Regulator. In any event the issue should be added to the Council’s breaches log.

9|Page

Page 51

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson
Late issue of annual benefit statements
Scenario
The Fund is late/fails to issue annual benefit statements to active and/or deferred scheme members within the
statutory time limits.
Steps that might be taken
Failure to issue annual benefit statements or delaying their issue is a clear breach. Before reporting to the
Pensions Regulator:


Assess whether failure relates to a specific employer or wider issues



If there have been system or scheme rule changes, determine whether teething problems have contributed
to the delay/failure



Put in place steps to ensure statements are issued within a reasonable timescale



Put in place steps to ensure no repeat



Record your investigations

Materiality
Is the delay/failure likely to be of “material significance”? Consider;


Is the breach resulting from employer failure to provide year-end data?



Has the employer failed to respond to the Fund’s enquiries?



Has there been a failure on the part of the Fund to have a proper plan in place for the ABS project?



Has the Fund failed to put in place an immediate plan to remedy any delay/failure?



Will the delay impact on the member’s actual benefits?

If the answer to any of the above is “yes” this may imply materiality and may warrant reporting to the
Pensions Regulator. In any event the issue should be added to the Council’s breaches log.

Late notification of leaver/retirement details
Scenario
A scheme employer fails to provide the Fund with the necessary leaver/retirement notifications
Steps that might be taken
On the face of it a breach will have occurred, as the scheme employer has failed to do something they are
required to do under the LGPS Regulations. Before deciding to report to the Pensions Regulator it is necessary
to consider why this has happened and the steps that are being taken to either rectify the situation and/or ensure
it is not repeated.


Assess whether failure relates to a specific employee or is it something more widespread



Remedy this particular situation immediately



If there have been personnel changes at the employer, has this resulted in teething problems during any
hand-over



If necessary the Fund could provide training to the employer on its responsibilities to ensure there is no
repeated failure

10 | P a g e

Page 52

GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND
Hymans Robertson
Materiality
Is the delay/failure likely to be of “material significance”? Consider;


Has the employer failed to respond to the Fund’s enquiries?



Has the failure delayed the assessment and notification/payment of retirement benefits?



Has the scheme member been denied access to investment opportunities due to the failure?



Has the failure led to financial hardship for the member?



Has the Fund failed to put in place an immediate plan to remedy any delay/failure?

If the answer to any of the above is “yes” this may imply materiality and may warrant reporting to the
Pensions Regulator. In any event the issue should be added to the Council’s breaches log.

Failure to declare potential conflict
Scenario
A Pension Committee or Pension Board member fails to declare a potential conflict of interest in relation to an
issue for discussion or decision, which has later come to light
Steps that might be taken
It is a requirement to declare conflicts of interest, so a breach will have occurred. Before deciding whether to
report to the Pensions Regulator:


Determine why the conflict of interest was not reported at the outset



Consider what impact it had on the eventual discussions or decision



Draw attention of all Committee and Board members to the Council’s conflicts of interest policy



Consider revisiting the discussion or decision, excluding the individual concerned



Remove the individual from the Pension Committee or Pension Board if considered their omission was of
such significance as to lead to a loss of confidence in the public office

Materiality
Is the non-disclosure likely to be of “material significance”? Consider;


Has the individual used the situation to their advantage?



Has the individual had their judgement swayed by the apparent conflict of interest?



Would the removal of the individual from the discussions/decision have altered the eventual outcome?



Would the non-disclosure in this situation lead to a loss of confidence in the public office?

If the answer to any of the above is “yes” this may imply materiality and may warrant reporting to the
Pensions Regulator. In any event the issue should be added to the Council’s breaches log.

11 | P a g e

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Pension Board
22nd April 2016
Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) proposed Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs)
Report of the Strategic Finance Director
Introduction
The national LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) has developed a range of
draft Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for LGPS Funds during 2014.
These were piloted by a number of LGPS Funds and the SAB intend to
recommend to the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG)
that all LGPS Funds are required to record their performance against these KPIs
from 2016/17.
Report
The Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) believes these KPIs will enable Funds to
compare their performance with other Funds and will enable the SAB to provide
more targeted support to Funds which may be underperforming.
It is anticipated the results of these KPIs should allow Funds to assess their
performance against examples of best practice from high performing funds and
also to identify any potential areas of concern.
The pilot had 4 primary KPIs and 14 secondary KPIs covering the following
areas:
Primary KPIs:


Risk management (covering all pension fund activities)



Funding level and contributions



Deficit recovery



Required investment returns

Secondary KPIs:


Pensions committee and local pensions board member
competence



Administering authority staff accountability, leadership
experience and training



Statutory governance standards and principles (as per DCLG

Page 55

or SSAB and tPR codes)


Quality and accessibility of information and statutory
statements/strategies/policies (Governance, FSS, SIP,
comms, admin authority and employer discretions policies)



Compliance with the Principles for Investment Governance
(ie Myners principles) and b) voluntary adoption of UK
Stewardship Code and UNPRI



Historic investment returns (last 3, 5, and 10 years) and
total investment costs compared to other LGPS funds



Annual report(s) and audited financial statements



Scheme membership data



Pension queries, pension payments, and annual benefit
statements



Cost efficient administration and overall VFM management



Handling of formal complaints and IDRPs



Fraud prevention



Internal and external audit

 Quality assurance
.
Details of these Primary and Secondary KPIs are shown on the two
attachments. These also detail the scoring system to be adopted.
The Gloucestershire Fund was not involved in the pilot of these KPIs but our self
scored results and evidence for the Primary KPIs are shown on the attached, for
information.
Recommendation
The Board are asked to note this report.
Contact Officer
Graham Burrow (01452 328944)

Page 56

LGPS SAB Key Performance Indicator Proforma

No. Key Indicator

Examples of level for concern

1

Comprehensive risk register covering the key risks (in accordance
No or only a partial and/or an unclear risk register with no or poorly specified or
with current CIPFA guidelines) with prioritisation, robust mitigation
un-implemented mitigation actions over time leading to increased fund risk.
actions, defined deadlines, with action tracking to completion.

Risk management

No evidence of a risk register being
a) prioritised
b) annually reviewed by Pensions Committee

c) annually reviewed by internal audit or external audit

2

d) used to reduce high risks
e) available for public scrutiny.
Self score -1 point for each one
a) Decreasing funding level (calculated on a standardised and consistent
Funding level and contributions basis) and/or in bottom decile of LGPS, over the last three triennial valuations
on a standardised like for like basis.
(see explanatory notes)

b) No or minimal employer funding risk assessment and monitoring and not
reported to Pensions Committee

Examples of good practice for high performing fund

Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) risks prioritised on a RAG red, amber, green or by a scoring
methodology
b) completed actions signed off by Pensions Committee after at
least annual update,

Fund
score

5+

1

a) Risk Register reviewed by the Gloucestershire
Pension Committee every 6 months.

1

b) As above

c) annual review by internal audit and external audit

1

d) <3 priority/“red” risks
e) public disclosure of a summary version published on fund
Self score +1 point for each one

1
1

Evidence and e-links to demonstrate

Evidence and comments

c) Reviewed as part of the Annual Governance
framework which is led by Internal Audit and feeds into
the Annual Governance Statement which is published
annually by the County Council.
d) No residual red risks
c) Included within Appendix C of the Annual Report

5+

a) Funding level rising and getting closer to 100% funded (or
above) over last three triennial valuations on a standardised like
for like basis. Funding %

c) Total actual contributions and actual received in last 6 years less than that
91 to >100 =score +5
assumed and certified in last 2 triennial valuations.
d) Net inward cash flow less than benefit outgoings so need for any unplanned
80-90 =+4
or forced sale of assets.

Page 57

Self score -1 for each one

70-79 =+3
60-69 = +2
<59 = +1
b) Employer funding risk assessment and monitoring reports to
Pension Committee. Net inward cashflow forecasts meeting
planned income or significantly exceeding benefot outgoings
c) Total actual contributions received in last 6 years equate to (or
exceed) that assumed and certified in the last 2 triennial
valuations.
d) Net inward cash flow significantly exceeds benefit out-goings

3

Deficit recovery
(see explanatory notes)

a) No or opaque deficit recovery plan.
b) Lengthening implied deficit recovery period (for contributions)
c) Implied deficit recovery periods >25 years for last 3 valuations.
Self score -1 point for each

4

Investment returns

(see explanatory notes)

Self score a) as above and rest +1 for each one
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate :
a)Transparent deficit recovery plan for tax raising and non-tax
raising bodies.
b) Implied deficit recovery reducing each triennial valuation.
c) Implied deficit recovery period in line <15 years for last 3
valuations
Self score +1 point for each one

a) Required future investment return (calculated on standardised and prudently
consistent basis) not aligned to the investment strategy target return, so lower Evidence and e-links to demonstrate :
likelihood of the fund achieving its funding strategy
a) Required future fund investment return (calc by actuary) are
b) Actual investment returns consistently undershoot actuarially required
consistent with and aligned to investment strategy (asset mix
returns
expected target returns) so higher likelihood of the fund meeting
its funding strategy.
Self score -1 point for each one

b) Actual investment returns consistently exceed actuarially
required returns

3

a) 76.0% funded as at 31st March 2013, calculated on
a like for like basis using HM Treasury assumptions by
the Fund's actuary and reported to Pension Committee
in 2014/15

1

c) Confirmed - detailled in Annual Report

1

d) Net inward cashflow significantly exceeds benefit out
goings in both 13/14 and 14/15 as shown in the
Statement of Accounts and summarised on page 11 of
the Pension Fund Annual Report 2014/15

2+
1
1

a) Shown in Fund Valuation report and report to
Pension Committee by Fund Actuary on a Like for Like
basis
b) Increasing funding levels at each valuation
c) confirmed at < 15 years by actuary following 2013
valuation (but not evidenced for earlier valuations)

2+

1

a) See Investment Policy and Performance Report on
pages 25 to 36 of the 2014/15 Annual Report

1

b) Investment returns being higher than expected since
2010 lead to a gain of £75m per actuarial report.

Self score +1 point for each one

KPI Return re the Gloucestershire Pension Fund/Primary

1 of 1

13/04/2016

This page is intentionally left blank

LGPS SAB Key Performance Indicator Proforma

No. Key Indicator

Examples of level for concern

Examples of good practice for high performing funds

5

Appointees unclear of statutory role and unable to clearly articulate the funds funding and investment objectiv
No evidence of

Appointees understand their statutory role and are able to clearly articulate the funds funding and investment object
Evidence and e-links to demonstrat
a) representation from different scheme employer types (scheduled and admitted) and member types (actives, deferred and
pensioners).
b) annual training plan recorded against the CIPFA knowledge and understanding framewor
c) annual training records disclosed in Annual Repo
d) annual self-assessment of training undertaken and identification of future need
Self score +1 point for each one
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate

Pensions Committee and Pensions Board members competenc

a) different scheme employer types and no or minimal scheme member representation.

6

Administering authority staff accountability, leadership, experience, and trainin

7

Statutory governance standards and principles (as per DCLG guidance and TPR code

8

Quality and accessibility of information and statutory statements, strategies, policies (governance, FSS, SIP, comms, admin
authority and employer discretions policies

c) Do not seek to meet any recognised ‘Plain English’ or e-publishing standard
Self score -1 for each one

a) Statutory publications all in place and published on fund website and updated in accordance with regulatory requirements and
due timelines.
b) Fund and employer discretions pubished
c) Meet ‘Plain English’ and or other recognised e-publishing standard
Self score +1 for each one

a) Adoption and report compliance with Investment Governance Principles (IGP) (was Myners Principles) and voluntary
adoption/signatory to FRC Stewardship Code and UNPR

No or un-explained non- compliance and/or non-support of

Evidence and e-links to demonstrate

10

a) Historic investment returns (last 1, 3, 5, and 10 years) and b) total investment costs compared to other LGPS fun
(See explanatory notes

a) IGP
b) UK Stewardship Code
c) UN PRI
Self score -1 for each
a) overall fund investment returns (net of fees) for last 1, 3, 5 years bottom two quintile
Score -3 and -5 points
b) Retain fund managers under- performing their mandates for 2 triennial valuation cycle
Score -1 point
c) Fund does not benchmark its fund manager and total investment costs relative to other LGPS fund
Score -1 point

11

Annual report and audited financial statement

a) 100% compliance with IGP
b) adoption and public reporting of compliance against the FRC UK Stewardship Cod
c) external managers or fund are PRI signatorie
Self score +1 for each
Evidence and e-links to
a) overall fund investment return (net of fees) for last 1, 3, 5 yea
a) Top quintile score +5 points
b) Next two quintiles score +3 and 0 points respective
b) >75% of fund mandates deliver over rolling 3 year performance period
Score +1 point
c) Fund benchmarks its fund manager and total investment costs
Score +1
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) Meet all regulatory and CIPFA best practice guidance

Page 59

a) Do not fully meet some regulatory requirements or CIPFA LGPS guidanc
b) Not published in Admin Authority Accounts by 1st October.
c) Published on SAB website after 1st November
Self score -1 for each one

12

Scheme membership data

a) Common data does not meet TPR standard
b) Conditional data do not meet the TPR standards. No plans in place to rectify th
Self score -1 for each

13

Pension queries, pension payments, and Annual Benefit Statemen

a) No or poor website with no scheme member or employer access
b) ABS do not meet regulatory requirements or due timelines for issuanc
Self score -1 for each

14

Cost efficient administration and overall VFM fund manageme

a) In bottom quartile with high total admin cost pa per member (based CIPFA or other benchmark to
b) Not in any national or regional frameworks for any externally procured services or collective investments.
Self score -1 for each

15

Handling of formal complaints and IDRPs

16

Fraud prevention

17

Internal and external aud

18

Quality assurance

KPI Return re the Gloucestershire Pension Fund/Secondary

Evidence and comments

b) No training needs analysis, or training strategy, or training log or use of CIPFA LGPS training framewo
c) No training record disclosures
d) Self assessment
Self score core -1 point for each
a) No or only part time Head of Fund and or only part time officer
b) No or little induction or on- going training provision or experience recorded on the adoption of CIPFA LGPS knowledge and
a) Experienced Head of Fund with full time dedicated officers with at least 3+ years’ experience.
understanding framework
b) staff undertake regular CIPFA LGPS TKU or other CPD training recorded across all LGPS skills (governance, benefits
Self score -1 for each one
administration, funding, investments, and comms)
Self score +1 point for each one
Several key areas of non- compliance with
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) DCLG LGPS statutory guidance
a) Full compliance with DCLG LGPS statutory guidanc
b) TPR guidance and codes
b) Full compliance with TPR guidance and codes for public sector pension scheme
c) Meet or exceed other LGPS best practice on recording all key decision taking and annual self, scheme employers, scheme
and reasons why not explained.
member assessment of overall effectiveness
c) No, little or poor key decision taking records and no or poor self, or scheme employers, or scheme members assessment of
Self score +1 for each one
overall fund effectiveness
Self core -1 for each one
a) Statutory publications not all in place or published on fund website or updated in accordance with regulatory requirements and
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
due timelines
b) Fund and employers discretions not published

9

Fund
score

b) Publish in Administering Authority accounts by 1st October
st
c) Publish fund report and accounts of SAB website before 1
November.
Self score +1 for each one
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) >99% common data meets TPR quality and due date standard
b) >95% of conditional data meets TPR quality and due date standards. Plans in place to improve th
Self score +1 for each one
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) Good website with interactive scheme member and employer acces
b) ABS meet or exceed regulatory standards and due timelines for issuanc
Self score +1 for each
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) In top quartile with low total admin cost pa per fund member (based CIPFA or other benchmark tool calculated on a consistent
and transparent basis)
b) Lead and/or actively participates in collaborative working and collective LGPS procurement, shared services or C
Self score +1 for each

a) Any Pensions Ombudsman determinations (and any appeals) fines were against the actions of the fund (ie not employer).

Evidence and e-links to demonstrate

Score -1

a) No Stage 2 IDRPs and no Pensions Ombudsman findingsagainst the fund actions in last 3 years
Score +1
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) Fraud prevention programme in place
b) Use external monthly, quarterly/annual mortality screening services, a
c) participate in bi-annual National Fraud Initiative
Self score +1 for each one
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) Unqualified annual internal reports with no or only low priority management actio
b) Unqualified and annual external audit with no or only low priority management recommendatio
c) Full or substantial assurance against all key audit areas with no high risk recommendation
Self score +1 for each
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) Fund has formal quality management external certificatio
b) Crystal Mark for plain English for publications/form
c) externally approved website accessibilit
d) pensions & investment recognition award(s
Self score +1 for each one

No or minimal systems/programme or plan or mechanisms in place t
a) Prevent fraud
b) Detect fraud
c) detect pension over-payments due to unreported death
Self score -1 for each one
a) No annual internal audit or qualified internal and external audit opinio
b) Urgent management action recommended on high/serious risk
c) Only moderate or low level of assurance and a number of high priority action recommend
Self score -1 for each
No evidence of
a) quality management system
b) external reviewed publication
c) externally approved website accessibilit
d) any awards
Self score -1 for each one

1 of 1

13/04/2016

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Pension Board
22nd April 2016
Pension Fund Business Plan 2016/17
Report of the Strategic Finance Director
Introduction
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2009 require Pension Funds to include within their Statement of Investment
Principles (SIP), details of compliance with the six updated Myners principles. Two of
these Principles, number 1, “Effective Decision Making” and number 4 “Performance
Assessment” are linked to the preparation of a Business Plan.
Report
The Myners “Effective Decision Making “ principle requires the preparation of a Business
Plan covering certain standards and specific areas.
Firstly, for the Fund as a whole, the identification of: major milestones; key targets and
their measurement; plus financial estimates for investment and administration.
Secondly, for the Pension Committee, setting out expectations of its own performance,
including attainment of standards in CIPFA’s knowledge & skills framework, achievement
of required training outcomes and achievement of administrative targets.
The Business Plan for 2016/17, which was approved by the Pension’s Committee at it’s
meeting in February 2016 is attached with this report.

Recommendation
The Board is asked to note the Business Plan for 2016/17 and consider which of the
review reports it wishes to consider.
Contact Officer
Graham Burrow (01452 328944)

1

Page 61

Gloucestershire Local Government Pension Fund
Business Plan 2016-17
Introduction
This Business Plan has been prepared in accordance with the Department for
Communities & Local Government (CLG) best practice guidance relating to the Myner’s
Principles for the governance of Pension Funds.
These best practice principles for Business Plans can be split into two parts.
Firstly, for the Fund as a whole, the identification of: key issues; major milestones; targets
and their measurement; plus financial estimates for investment and administration.
Secondly, for the Pension Committee, setting out expectations of its own performance,
including attainment of standards in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance &
Accountancy’s (CIPFA’s) knowledge & skills framework, achievement of required training
outcomes and achievement of administrative targets
Background
As at 31st December 2015, the Gloucestershire Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) Fund had approximately 50,400 members consisting of 18,500 active, 17,800
deferred and 14,100 retired (pensioner/dependant) members. There are 252 employer
bodies in the Fund and 185 of these have active contributing members. The value of
investment assets under management at 31st December 2015 was £1.669 billion.
The Pension Committee is responsible for the proper administration of all aspects of the
Fund and has been delegated this authority by the County Council, as Administering
Authority of the Fund.
Key Issues to be considered by the Pension Committee
The Committee aims to ensure the maximising of investment returns over the long term
by adherence to the investment strategy and agreed asset allocations within a level of risk
agreed by the Pension Committee. This includes reviewing the Fund Managers’ quarterly
performance reports and discussing their strategy and performance when the Fund
Managers meet with the Committee, and regularly reviewing the risk register. The
Committee also have to ensure there are sufficient assets readily available over the long
term to meet all Fund liabilities.
There are also a number of key policy and strategy documents which the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations require to be produced and these
need to be kept under regular review. These can accessed on the County Council’s web
site (www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestments) and are listed below:

2

Page 62

Funding Strategy Statement
This sets down the strategy for prudently meeting the Fund’s future pension liabilities over
the longer term, including the maintenance, as far as possible, of stable levels of
employer contributions. It also identifies key risks and controls facing the Fund and
includes details of employer contribution rates following the Fund’s triennial valuation.
Statement of Investment Principles
This document is prepared to reflect the reporting requirements as detailed in the LGPS
Management and Investment of Funds Regulations 2009 and identifies the investment
responsibilities of the various parties involved, e.g. Pension Committee, Officers,
Investment Managers, Custodian, Investment Advisor. It also details the Fund’s
investment policies and asset allocation as well as its compliance with the six Myners’
investment principles. These six principles cover: Effective Decision Making; Clear
Objectives; Risk and Liabilities; Performance Assessment; Responsible Ownership; and
Transparency and Reporting.
However if, following the consultation on Investment Reform Criteria the LGPS
Management and Investment of Funds Regulations 2009 are amended as proposed, the
Statement of Investment Principles will be replaced by an Investment Strategy Statement.
This Investment Strategy Statement aims to reflect the new approach to the pooling of
investments, and to ensure that approaches to risk are clearly specified by each fund.
Communications Strategy
This details how the Fund provides information and publicity about the Pension scheme to
its existing members and their employers as well as methods of promoting the Pension
scheme to prospective members and their employers. It also identifies the format,
frequency and method of distributing such information or publicity.
Governance Compliance Statement
The LGPS Regulations require Administering Authorities to prepare a written statement
setting out their compliance with best practice governance principles. These best practice
principles are grouped within eight categories and are listed within the statement. The
Fund’s compliance against each of these principles is also detailed, including evidence of
compliance and, if appropriate, reasons if there is not full compliance.
Governance Policy Statement
This document details the arrangements put in place by the Administering Authority for
the administration of the Pension scheme. This will include the terms of reference of the
Pension Committee and the appropriate governance arrangements which will reflect the
eight categories of best practice principles as outlined in the Governance Compliance
Statement.
The timetable for consideration of all these key issues is detailed in Appendix A.

3

Page 63

Targets & Major Milestones for the Pension Fund in 2016/17
The major targets and milestones for 2016/17 are detailed below.
Task

Measure of Performance

Publish a new Investment Strategy Statement
by 01/10/16

Meet specified time scales

Submit final detailed pooling submission to the
DCLG by 15/07/16

Meet specified time scales

Pension Fund Accounts completed by 30/06/16

Closedown timetable

Action any DCLG requirements re future
structure of the LGPS, including investments

Meet specified time scales

Respond to requests from the Scheme Advisory
Board

Meet specified time scales

Issue the annual benefits statements to all

Meet specified time scales

members of the fund by 31 August 2016
Confirm content of 2015/16 Annual Report

Agreed by Committee Aug 2016

Accounts agreed by external auditor 30/09/16

No qualification of a/c’s by Auditor

In house training day for Committee plus Board

Relevance of topics covered

Annual Pension Fund Report printed by 31/10/16

Discussed at Annual Meeting

Pension Fund Financial Estimates
The costs of operating the Gloucestershire Pension Fund are borne by the Fund (and not
by the County Council). These estimated costs for 2016/17 are shown below and are split
between “Investments, Accounting &Financial Management” and “Scheme
Administration”. For comparison purposes the previous year’s estimates are also shown.
The Fund takes part in the annual CIPFA Benchmarking of LGPS Pension Administration
costs and is currently (and has consistently been) in the lowest cost quartile when
compared with other LGPS Funds. The administration cost per member at the
Gloucestershire Fund is £13.45 compared to an average of all the benchmarked LGPS
Funds of £19.17.
“Investments, Accounting &Financial Management” includes the cost of Fund Managers
and other external costs as well as the internal costs of producing and maintaining the
Fund’s accounting records and statements. “Scheme Administration” includes the internal
costs of dealing with the Fund’s members and employers in relation to current/future
benefits and compliance with scheme regulations, as well as external costs such as IT
and actuarial costs in supporting Fund administration and the Triennial Valuation.

4

Page 64

ESTIMATES
Investments,
Accounting & Financial
Management
Staff costs
Other internal costs
External Fund Manager
fees
Other external costs
Sub Total of
Investments Costs

Scheme Administration
including Member
Records & Benefits
Staff costs
Other internal costs
External costs
Sub Total of
Administration Costs

2015/16
£’000
£’000

2016/17
£’000
£’000

260
30

320
30

5,430
220

5,710
260
5,940

570
260
250

Total

6,320

630
260
370
1,080

1,260

7,020

7,580

The Chief Financial Officer will keep under review the level of internal and external
resources required to enable the Committee to carry out its functions effectively and will
advise of any recommended actions to put right any deficiencies or to anticipate any
changing requirements for the future.
Training for the Pension Committee and supporting officers
CIPFA have produced guidance on the knowledge and skills committee members and
fund officers need to have when involved in the work of the Pension Fund committee.
These link to the Myners principles. In particular, Principle 1 ‘effective decision making’
states:
Administering Authorities should ensure that:


Decisions are taken by persons or organisations with the skills, knowledge, advice and
resources necessary to make them effectively and monitor implementation; and



Those persons or organisations have sufficient expertise to be able to evaluate and
challenge the advice they receive, and manage conflicts of interest.

5

Page 65

The CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework identifies those elements pension fund
committee members should have in order to collectively fulfil their effective decision
making role.
The Committee recognises the importance of training for its members and for its officers,
who advise and support the Committee. The Committee have undertaken to attain the
standards laid down in CIPFA’s knowledge and skills framework.
The Committee’s expectations on training and other areas of performance are detailed
below. In the context of the forthcoming pooling of investments, the opportunities for the
provision of training on a regional basis will be explored.
To complete an annual assessment on training needs for all members of the Pension
Committee based on the knowledge and skills framework. To use the results of the
assessment to identify areas within the framework where knowledge and skill levels need
to be improved.
In addition, the Committee have agreed individuals should carry out a minimum of 1 days
training each year via any combination of the following: - attendance on
courses/conferences/seminars; reading briefing notes/policy documents; reading and
discussing reports at Pension Committee.
Also, Committee members are expected to attend all 3 days of the LGE Pensions
Fundamentals course, which covers benefits, fund administration and investments. The
course is designed to help ensure compliance with the Myners principle on “Effective
Decision Making”. Attendance on all 3 days of this course should take place as soon as
possible, but must be within the first three years of joining the Committee, and for officers,
within the first year of supporting the Committee.
Administrative Targets for the Committee
Members to attend at least 60% of Pension Committee meetings each year.
Draft committee minutes to be issued within two months of a meeting
Committee papers to be sent out 5 working days before a meeting.
To regularly review and agree changes to strategy/policy documents. All strategy/policy
documents will be considered by Committee at least every two years, even if no changes
are recommended.

6

Page 66

Appendix A
Gloucestershire LGPS Fund
Pension Committee Meetings
Meeting Date and Location
Friday 13th May 2016
10.00 a.m. Shire Hall
Meeting Rooms 1 & 2

Friday 12th August 2016
10.00 a.m. Shire Hall
Meeting Rooms 1 & 2

Friday 11th November 2016

Agenda to include:
Investment Manager Reports
 Standard Life
 Hermes
Reviews:
Governance Policy Statement
Statement of Investment Principles
Investment Manager Reports
 Western Asset
Presentations
 WM LA trends
Reviews:
Communications Policy Statement
Annual Report approval
Investment Strategy Statement if applicable
Investment Manager Reports
 BlackRock

10.00 a.m. Shire Hall
Meeting Rooms 1 & 2

Friday 2nd December 2016
Pension Committee Pre-AGM Mtg
Meeting Rooms 1 & 2

Pre Meeting
Investment Manager Reports
 CBRE

Pension Fund Annual Meeting
12.00pm Council Chamber

Annual Meeting

Friday 10th February 2017

Investment Manager Reports
 GMO

Provisional, to be confirmed.
Reviews:
Funding Strategy Statement
Business Plan
Administration Strategy
Risk Register
Friday 12th May 2017
Provisional, to be confirmed.

Investment Manager Reports
 Standard Life
 Hermes
Reviews:
Governance Policy Statement
Statement of Investment Principles
Pension Board report

Page 67

Friday 1st September 2017

Investment Manager Reports
 Western Asset

Provisional, to be confirmed.
Presentations
 WM LA trends
Reviews:
Communications Policy Statement
Annual Report approval
Note: Reviews of Policy/Strategy documents identified above, take place if required

Page 68

Agenda Item 8
Pension Board
22nd April 2016
Review of the
Pension Fund Risk Register
Report of the Strategic Finance Director
Introduction
The Administering Authority is required by the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) Regulations to maintain a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS)
and to keep it under review. The FSS is always reviewed as part of the
Triennial Valuation.
In preparing the FSS, the LGPS Regulations require the Administering
Authority to have regard to the best practice guidance issued by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). This
guidance includes the need to identify risks relating to the Pension Fund and
the measures or controls to be taken to help counter those risks.
The Risk Register was last reviewed by the Pension Committee in August
2015 and is submitted to the February 2016 Committee in accordance with
the 6 monthly agreed timetable for review.
Report
The attached Risk Register reflects the risks relating to the Pension Fund as
shown in the FSS and indicates the significance of each risk .
The significance of individual risks is measured by a scoring system which
multiplies the likelihood of the occurrence with the potential impact of such an
occurrence. Both “likelihood” and “impact” are scored 1 – 5 and after
multiplying both numbers together, the higher the product, the higher the risk.
Based on these scores, the following summarises the risk levels, from low, to
high.
Level of
Risk
Low

Score

Colour

1–6

Green

Moderate

7 – 12

Amber

High

13 – 25

Red

Page 69

The following scoring matrix indicates which risk score is produced by
multiplying the different levels of “likelihood” and “impact” together. It also
defines the different levels of “likelihood” and “impact” represented by the
scores of 1 to 5 and illustrates the resultant levels of risk that can be
produced.
RISK
LIKELIHOOD
Almost Certain
(5)
Highly Likely
(4)
Probable
(3)
Possible
(2)
Rare
(1)

IMPACT / CONSEQUENCE
(1)
(2)
(3)
Insignificant
Minor
Moderate

(4)
Major

(5)
Critical

5

10

15

20

25

4

8

12

16

20

3

6

9

12

15

2

4

6

8

10

1

2

3

4

5

The attached Risk Register shows each risk, scored before and after controls
are in place (i.e. the inherent and residual risks), and also shows the target
level for each risk, i.e. the risk appetite.
The risks are cross referenced to the Funding Strategy as follows:
Financial Risks (F)
Funding / Demography Risks (F/D)
Administration / Regulatory Risks (A/R)
Governance Risks (G)
Review of Risk Register
The Risk register has been reviewed and includes a new risk relating to the
development of the South West investment pool (Project Brunel). This new
risks is summarised below and is included on page 10 of the updated risk
register.
New Risk: A/R4 : LGPS Asset Pooling (medium risk). Whether the fund has
sufficient resources to move the pooling proposal forward, based on the Joint
Committee approach, which does not detrimentally impact on the service.

Page 70

The objective being to ensure the fund is proactive in the development of the
proposals and the robust control environment required for the collective
management of assets, to avoid a detrimental impact on the fund.
Also, the residual risk rating for Risk F1 (top of page 1) has been reduced
from 8 to 6 (Low).
This is because the “like for like” valuation comparison of South west funds
undertaken by Hymans Robertson following the last valuation gave positive
results for the Gloucestershire fund with the implied deficit recovery period at
11 years being the second lowest, with the Gloucestershire fund needing to
achieve the lowest investment return (4.1%) to recover the deficit in 20 years.
The Risk Appetite has also been reviewed for a number of risks to ensure it
reflects the funds views in terms of the maximum level of acceptable risk.
Recommendation
That the Board notes the updated Risk Register..
Contact Officer
Mark Spilsbury (01452 328920)

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

F1

01/04/2014

Fund assets fail to deliver
returns in line with the
anticipated returns
underpinning valuation of
liabilities over the long-term

The achievement of fully
funded pension liabilities
over the long term

4

3

Only anticipate long-term return on a relatively prudent basis
to reduce risk of under-performing.
Assets invested on the basis of specialist advice, in a
suitably diversified manner across asset classes,
geographies, managers, etc.
Analyse progress at three yearly valuations for all
12
employers.
Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities between valuations at
whole Fund level. Actuarial Review on a like for like basis
has confirmed a strong deficit recovery plan.

Risk Appetite

Direction of Travel

RR Risk Score

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

RR Impact

Objective

RR Likelihood

Risk Description

IR Risk Score

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

Categories of
Risk

01/04/2014

Inappropriate long-term
investment strategy.

The achievement of fully
funded pension liabilities
over the long term

4

3

12

1

Date
Reviewed

Period
Comments

2

3

green

6

Low

Financial

It was noted that
while there has
been short term
market volatility,
this is a long term
funding target and
given the Fund's
strong deficit
Head of
January 2016 recovery position
Pension Fund
and the low returns
required to
achieve
this, the current
risk score was still
appropriate. But
this would be kept
under review

2

3

green

6

Low

Financial

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Page 73
F2

Regular monitoring of Fund's cash flow with actuarial
estimates of future cash flow position.
Overall investment strategy options including diversification
considered as an integral part of the funding strategy. Use
of asset liability modelling. Actuarial Review on a like for
like basis has confirmed a strong deficit recovery plan.

Risk Owner

Further Actions Required
To be kept under review during
2016

The achievement of fully
funded pension liabilities
over the long term

4

3

Stabilisation modelling at whole Fund level allows for the
probability of this within a longer term context.
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above.
Some investment in bonds helps to mitigate this risk.
Actuarial Review on a like for like basis has confirmed a
strong deficit recovery plan.

Direction of Travel

RR Risk Score

IR Risk Score
12

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

Risk Appetite

Fall in risk-free returns on
Government bonds, leading to
rise in value placed on
liabilities.

Objective

RR Impact

01/04/2014

Risk Description

RR Likelihood

F3

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

Categories of
Risk

2

3

green

6

Low

Financial

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

2

3

green

6

Low

Financial

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Page 74
F4

01/04/2014

Increasing Pension Fund deficit

The achievement of fully
funded pension liabilities
over the long term

4

3

12

Actuarial review via Triennial Valuation and regular update
reports.
Regular consideration by Pension Committee on manager
performance relative to funding assumptions, funding
position and funding strategy. Actuarial Review on a like for
like basis has confirmed a strong deficit recovery plan.

2

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

12

Quarterly investment monitoring analyses market
performance and active managers relative to their index
benchmark. Diversification of investments across asset
classes and across different fund managers

Direction of Travel

3

RR Risk Score

4

Risk Appetite

Maximising investment
returns to help the Fund
achieve its funding targets

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

RR Impact

Active investment manager
under-performance relative to
benchmark.

Objective

RR Likelihood

01/04/2014

Risk Description

IR Risk Score

F5

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

Categories of
Risk

3

3

amber

9

Medium

Financial

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

3

2

green

6

Medium

Financial

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Page 75
F6

01/04/2014

Pay and price inflation
significantly more than
anticipated.

The achievement of fully
funded pension liabilities
over the long term

4

2

8

The focus of the actuarial valuation process is on real
returns on assets, net of price and pay increases.
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above, gives early warning.
Some investment in index-linked bonds also helps to
mitigate this risk.
Employers pay for their own salary awards and should be
mindful of the geared effect on pension liabilities of any bias
in pensionable pay rises towards longer-serving employees.

3

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

Orphaned employers give rise
to added costs for the Fund

To ensure individual
employers in the Fund are
responsible for their own
costs

4

3

12

An explicit stabilisation mechanism has been agreed for
eligible employers as part of the funding strategy. Other
measures are also in place to limit sudden increases in
contributions.
Obtain information on financial strength of individual
employers. Discuss with employers their ability to absorb
rises in their level of contribution.
Where appropriate mitigate impact through deficit spreading
and phasing in of contribution rises, with appropriate
security from employers and further analysis by the Fund’s
actuary.

Direction of Travel

RR Risk Score

Risk Appetite

To stabilise changes in
employer contribution rates
over the long term

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

Categories of
Risk

2

3

green

6

Low

Financial

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

2

3

green

6

Medium

Financial

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Page 76

Unexpected increase in
employer’s contribution rate

IR Risk Score

Objective

RR Impact

01/04/2014

Risk Description

RR Likelihood

F7

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

F8

01/04/2014

4

3

12

The Fund seeks a cessation debt (or security/guarantor) to
minimise the risk of this happening in the future. At risk
employers are identified and are engaged in discussions
over remedial actions in advance of retirement of all active
members.
If it occurs, the Actuary calculates the added cost spread
pro-rata among all employers

4

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

The achievement of fully
funded pension liabilities
over the long term

Pensioners living longer, thus
increasing cost to Fund.

01/04/2014

Maturing Fund – i.e. proportion
of actively contributing
Efficient management of the
employees declines relative to
Fund by the Administering
retired employees leading to
Authority, ensuring it's
the possibility of there not being
responsibilities are met,
sufficient liquid funds available
while costs are minimised
to pay liabilities as they fall due.

5

F/D2

4

Set mortality assumptions with some allowance for future
increases in life expectancy.
The Fund Actuary has direct access to the experience of
over 50 LGPS funds which allows early identification of
changes in life expectancy that might in turn affect the
assumptions underpinning the valuation.
The Fund also sets life expectancy assumptions using
ClubVita, which is a specialised longevity company and
provides life expectancy assumptions based on the profile
of the Fund’s own membership.
Administering Authority encourage any employers
concerned at costs to promote later retirement culture.
Each 1 year rise in the average age at retirement would
save roughly 5% of pension costs.

2

10

3

Continue to monitor at each valuation, seeking monetary
amounts rather than % of pay. Between valuations regularly
12 monitor level of active members on both a total Fund basis
and by individual employer. Regularly monitor how cash flow
positive the Fund is. Regularly review investment strategy.

Page 77

01/04/2014

5

Direction of Travel

RR Risk Score

3

2

green

6

Medium

Funding/
Demographic

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

2

3

green

6

Medium

Funding/
Demographic

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Risk Appetite

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

RR Impact

Objective

IR Risk Score

Risk Description

RR Likelihood

F/D1

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

Categories of
Risk

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

4

3

12

F/D4

To ensure individual
employers in the Fund are
responsible for their own
costs

4

3

12

A transferee admission body will always have a funding
guarranty from the transferring scheme employer. A
community admission body will only be admitted to the Fund
if they have a funding guarantee from a scheme employer
with tax raising powers. A surety bond to cover the cost of
paying pensions early if the company goes into liquidation is
also generally required by the scheme employer to cover
the potential risk of the admitted body becoming insolvent
and the value of this surety or bond is reviewed regularly to
ensure it provides adequate cover for the financial risks
involved.

Employers are charged the extra cost of non ill-health
retirements following each individual decision.
Employer ill health retirement experience is monitored, and
insurance is an option.

6

Direction of Travel

RR Risk Score

2

3

green

6

Medium

Funding/
Demographic

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

2

3

green

6

Medium

Funding/
Demographic

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Risk Appetite

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

RR Impact

01/04/2014

Deteriorating patterns of early
retirements

Efficient management of the
Fund by the Administering
Authority, ensuring it's
responsibilities are met,
while costs are minimised

Page 78

01/04/2014

A company admitted to the
Fund as an admission body
may become financially
unviable

Objective

IR Risk Score

Risk Description

RR Likelihood

F/D3

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

Categories of
Risk

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

Reductions in payroll causing
insufficient deficit recovery
payments

To ensure individual
employers in the Fund are
responsible for their own
costs

01/04/2014

Ill-health retirements
significantly more than
anticipated

To ensure individual
employers in the Fund are
responsible for their own
costs

3

Monitoring of each employer’s ill-health experience on an
ongoing basis. The employer may be charged additional
12 contributions if this exceeds the ill-health assumption built in.
Ill health insurance is available to be purchased by
individual employers

Require employers to pay sums due for deficit recovery
contributions as a fixed monetary amount rather than being
expressed as a % of pay.

2

3

green

6

Medium

Funding/
Demographic

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

2

3

green

6

Medium

Funding/
Demographic

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Risk Appetite

12

Direction of Travel

3

RR Risk Score

4

Categories of
Risk

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Page 79

01/04/2014

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

RR Impact

Objective

RR Likelihood

Risk Description

IR Risk Score

F/D5

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

F/D6

4

7

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

The achievement of fully
funded pension liabilities
over the long term

30/07/2015

Transfers out of the Fund into
DC schemes due to
introduction of "Freedom &
Choice" resulting in a chnge in
funding level

The achievement of fully
funded pension liabilities
over the long term

3

3

Direction of Travel

RR Risk Score

2

3

green

6

Low

Funding/
Demographic

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

9

Taken advice from the Fund actuary on the proportion of the
Fund's active and deferred members aged 55 or over and
the maximum exposure of the Fund to these transfers, split
between active and deferred members. Considered impact
on funding level given different possible levels of take up
from active and deferred members.

2

2

green

4

Medium

Funding/
Demographic

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Risk Appetite

9

Take advice from the Fund actuary on the likely impact this
will have on Fund investment out performance assumptions
and employer contributions. Monitor levels of outsourcings
on a “closed” basis and advise employers of implications so
these are taken into account when they consider the
business case for an outsourcing. Regularly review
investment strategy and strategic asset allocation.

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

Categories of
Risk

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Page 80

01/04/2014

Adverse effect on the Fund’s
investment strategy and
employer contributions if large
numbers of active members are
outsourced on a “closed” (to
new entrants) basis

RR Impact

Objective

IR Risk Score

Risk Description

RR Likelihood

F/D7

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

F/D8

3

3

8

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

Efficient management of the
Fund by the Administering
Authority, ensuring it's
responsibilities are met,
while costs are minimised

01/04/2014

Failure to collect and account
for contributions from
employers and employees on
time

Efficient management of the
Fund by the Administering
Authority, ensuring it's
responsibilities are met,
while costs are minimised

3

3

9

The Administering Authority considers all consultation
papers issued by the Government and comments where
appropriate. Considered different % take up scenarios for
active and deferred members
The results of the most recent reforms have been built into
the 2013 valuation. Any changes to member contribution
rates or benefit levels will be carefully communicated with
members to minimise possible opt-outs or adverse actions.

Direction of Travel

RR Risk Score

3

green

6

Low

Administration/
Regulatory

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

2

3

green

6

Low

Administration/
Regulatory

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Risk Appetite

2

Categories of
Risk

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Page 81

01/04/2014

Significant additional costs
resulting from changes to
national pension requirements
and/or HMRC rules e.g.
changes arising from public
sector pensions reform.

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

RR Impact

Objective

IR Risk Score

Risk Description

RR Likelihood

A/R1

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

A/R2

4

3

12

Regular monthly monitoring and reconciliation of Fund
contributions received, including a detailed analysis of
individual employer contributions and employee
contributions by pay banding. Robust debt management
processes are in place to recover any late payments

9

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

4

3

Procedures and processes are in place and applied in
relation to eg: checking for "ghost" scheme members;
multiple levels of authorisation for claims and fund payments
12
plus secondary checking of lump sum payments.
Procedures are documented and staff are trained and
managed in carrying these out. The Fund's internal auditors
carry out regular reviews.

3

green

6

Risk Appetite

2

Direction of Travel

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

RR Risk Score

Loss of funds through fraud or
misappropriation

Efficient management of the
Fund by the Administering
Authority, ensuring it's
responsibilities are met,
while costs are minimised

IR Risk Score

Objective

RR Impact

01/04/2014

Risk Description

RR Likelihood

A/R3

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

Low

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Period
Comments

Administration/
Regulatory

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Administration/
Regulatory

This risk was
added in January
2016 in
anticipation of the
formulation of a
Soth West pooling
arrangement in
Head of
January 2016
accordance with
Pension Fund
the Local Pension
Scheme :
Investment Reform
Criteria and
Guidance
Consultation.

Page 82

Categories of
Risk

A/R4

01/02/2016

To ensure the fund is
proactive in the development
Does the fund have sufficient
of the proposals and the
resources to provide sufficient
input to the development of the robust control environment
required for the collective
South West Regional Pool
management of assets, to
without having a detrimental
avoid a detrimental impact
effect on the service provided
on the fund.

4

4

16

Additional staffing resources may be required to facilitate
dedicated staffing resources to take forward the pooling
proposal. This may require additional contributions from
participating funds.

10

2

3

green

6

Medium

Further Actions Required

01/04/2014

Actuarial or investment advice
is not sought, or is not heeded,
or proves to be insufficient in
some way

Efficient management of the
Fund by the Administering
Authority, ensuring it's
responsibilities are met,
while costs are minimised

4

3

12

Direction of Travel

RR Risk Score

Risk Appetite

The achievement of fully
funded pension liabilities
over the long term

The Administering Authority has a close relationship with
employing bodies and communicates required standards
e.g. for submission of data.
The Actuary may revise the rates and Adjustments
certificate to increase an employer’s contributions (under
Regulation 38) between triennial valuations
Deficit contributions may be expressed as monetary
amounts.

Categories of
Risk

2

3

green

6

Low

Governance

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

2

3

green

6

Low

Governance

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Page 83

01/04/2014

Administering Authority
unaware of structural changes
in an employer’s membership
(e.g. large fall in employee
members, large number of
retirements) or not advised of
an employer closing to new
entrants

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

RR Impact

Objective

IR Risk Score

Risk Description

RR Likelihood

G1

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

G2

4

3

12

The Administering Authority maintains close contact with its
specialist advisers.
Advice is delivered via formal meetings involving Elected
Members, and recorded appropriately.
Actuarial advice is subject to professional requirements
such as peer review

11

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

Efficient management of the
Fund by the Administering
Authority, ensuring it's
responsibilities are met,
while costs are minimised

4

3

The Administering Authority requires employers with Best
Value contractors ( Transferee Admission Bodies) to inform
it of forthcoming changes. The administering authority also
monitors contract periods of Transferee Admission Bodies
12 and regularly monitors levels of active employees across all
employers but particularly for Community Admission Bodies.
Where their active membership materially decreases further
steps are taken.

Direction of Travel

RR Risk Score

IR Risk Score

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

Risk Appetite

Administering Authority failing
to commission the Fund
Actuary to carry out a
termination valuation for a
departing Admission Body.

Objective

RR Impact

01/04/2014

Risk Description

RR Likelihood

G3

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

Categories of
Risk

2

3

green

6

Low

Governance

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

2

3

green

6

Low

Governance

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Page 84
G4

01/04/2014

An employer ceasing to exist
with insufficient funding or
adequacy of a bond.

Efficient management of the
Fund by the Administering
Authority, ensuring it's
responsibilities are met,
while costs are minimised

4

3

12

The Administering Authority believes that it would normally
be too late to address the position if it was left to the time of
departure.
The risk is mitigated by:
Seeking a funding guarantee from another scheme
employer.
Alerting the prospective employer to its obligations and
encouraging it to take independent actuarial advice.
Vetting prospective employers before admission.
Where permitted under the regulations requiring a bond to
protect the Fund from various risks.
Requiring new Community Admission Bodies to have a
scheme employer with tax raising powers as guarantor.
Reviewing bond or guarantor arrangements at regular
intervals.
Monitoring funding levels more closely as approaching
cessation and reviewing contributions well ahead of
cessation if thought appropriate

12

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

Risk Appetite

Efficient management of the
Fund by the Administering
Authority, ensuring it's
responsibilities are met,
while costs are minimised

Direction of Travel

01/04/2014

Lack of relevant expertise,
knowledge and skills at officer
and member level in relation to
administering the LGPS

RR Impact

Efficient management of the
Fund by the Administering
Authority, ensuring it's
responsibilities are met,
while costs are minimised

RR Likelihood

01/04/2014

Failure to comply with the
Myners’ Investment Principles

Categories of
Risk

Compliance as detailed in the Statement of Investment
Principles is kept under regular review.

2

3

green

6

Low

Governance

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

12

Training needs assessments for the Administering Authority
are carried out and an annual training plan produced. The
Fund subscribes to the CIPFA Knowledge and Skills
Framework for the LGPS and makes this information
available to all members of the Pension Committee and
relevant officers. Appropriately qualified external advisers
and consultants are used as appropriate.

2

3

green

6

Low

Governance

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

IR Risk Score

Objective

4

3

12

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Page 85

Risk Description

IR Impact

G5

Date Added

IR Likelihood

Ref

RR Risk Score

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

G6

4

3

13

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

4

4

16

Personal data and scanned documents relating to scheme
members are maintained in an online system with logical
access controls via individual password access for those
that need to maintain and access this information.
Procedures for maintaining pension records are
documented and the process is monitored and managed
within the Pensions Administration team. Procedures are
regularly reviewed by the Fund's internal auditors.Physical
access controls are also in operation within the Pension
Fund office

Page 86
14

4

green

4

Direction of Travel

1

RR Risk Score

Current controls in place, including from other
Assurance Providers (e.g. OfSTED)

Risk Appetite

Failure to hold personal data
Efficient management of the
securely, or to prevent a
Fund by the Administering
breach of cyber security
Authority, ensuring it's
arrangements, and keep
responsibilities are met,
pension records up-to-date and
while costs are minimised
accurate

IR Risk Score

Objective

RR Impact

01/04/2014

Risk Description

RR Likelihood

G7

Date Added

IR Impact

Ref

IR Likelihood

Risk Register - Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund - Risks updated on an on-going basis
1b
Version:
February 2016
Date:

Categories of
Risk

Low

Governance

Risk Owner

Date
Reviewed

Head of
January 2016
Pension Fund

Period
Comments

Further Actions Required

